

FILLMORE GIRLS SOFTBALL

2025 Bylaws

Updated: 11/29/2024

Article I: Name and Location Section 1. Name

This organization shall be known as the FILLMORE GIRLS SOFTBALL (FGS), hereafter referred to as the League.

Section 2. Location

For the purposes of establishing residence criteria for this league, the locations shall be described as the Heritage Valley which include Fillmore, Piru and Santa Paula communities.

Article II: Purpose and Objective

The purpose of this League is to establish an organized recreational fastpitch softball program within the geographical boundaries defined above. The objective of the league is to progressively improve girls' softball skills and teach the ideals of good sportsmanship, discipline, teamwork and leadership.

Article III: Fillmore Girls Softball League Membership Section 1. League Membership

Players

All ages 4 ½ -16 years meeting the residence set forth in the by-laws of the League shall be eligible for membership. Girls' ages 4 ½ -6 years as of August 31st will be eligible for 6U. Note: Age requirements for ages 7-16 years for softball must be met as of August 31st of the current year. Must be registered by the current final registration date listed and put forth by the Board.

Adults

All adults or parents who participate in the league as volunteers or who have children playing in the league shall be eligible for membership and are required to have a USA Softball background check and volunteer form filled out online. Subject to an interview process by the Coach Coordinator.

Players from outside of defined location

Players who do not meet the residence criteria can be granted participation in the Fillmore Girls Softball League, pending Board approval.

Vacancies

Girls exceeding current vacancies will be placed on a waiting list in the order in which they sign up. The date and time will be noted on each girl's late registration form. Additional players will be added from the waiting list in the order they appear. The replacement will be the first girl on the waiting list who is eligible for that Division.

Article IV: Board of Directors and Officers Section 1. Officers

1. The Board of Directors of this League shall be elected by ballot vote or Verbal in person voting by previous board members, depending on the amount of interest of BOD and number of persons present to vote. The positions of the Board of directors office shall include: President; Vice President; Secretary; Treasurer; Coach Administrator, Snack bar Coordinator and Field and maintenance manager.
2. Elective Board members of this league shall be elected by ballot vote or Verbal in person vote by previous board members depending on the amount of interest and number of persons present to vote. The positions of the elective office shall include: Safety/Training Coordinator, Chief of Umpire, Fundraising Coordinator, Social Media/ Webmaster, Equipment Manager, and Member at large X3.

Qualification:

1. Must serve one year as an Elective Board member or Volunteer member within the previous 2 years and must submit interest in the Board of Directors prior to the start of the following season. Must submit a Volunteer inquiry online at Fillmore girls Softball.com prior to the opening meeting in September.

2. Once elected into position, a new appointed member must sign a Board member contract and provide a retainer check for the current registration amount. In addition to completing all requirements as a volunteer such as Safesport and submit a background check on the register USA website.

3. In addition to the above-named Officers, the position of Past President is established. This is a non-elected position, which may only be filled by anyone who has served as the President for FGSL in the immediately preceding 3 years. Appointment to the position requires a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote by the current Board. The duties of the position are as follows:

- a) Shall act as an advisor to the President and the Board
- b) Shall assist any Board member with his or her activities if necessary
- c) Shall have no authority over matters except for those expressly given by the President and/or Board.
- d) Shall not have any voting privileges at Board Meetings.

Section 2. Voting

Board Members shall have one (1) vote in the election process for positions of Board members and one (1) vote at general meetings for general membership issues. 2/3 of Board Members must be in attendance to vote on any issue. Voting is based on majority rule. In the event there is a tie breaker the President will make the final vote.

Section 3. Term

All elected board positions shall be for a term of One year. The term of office shall be from September 1st through August 31st and shall be filled on alternate years as shown in the table below.

Elected On Even Numbered Years	Elected On Odd Numbered Years
President	Vice President
Secretary	Treasurer
8 & 10 Under Player Agent	12 & 14 Under Player Agent
Umpire in Chief	T-Ball Player Agent
Snack Bar Coordinator	Equipment Manager
Fundraising Director	Publicity / Public Relations Director
Director of Equipment & Fields	Field Manager
	Mini-Sox Player Agent

In the event certain positions are not filled, the President shall determine the division of responsibilities of the vacancies among the filled positions. Every attempt should be made to assign the tasks to positions that are elected on the same year as the vacant positions. If an individual subsequently comes forward and wishes to volunteer for a vacant position, the

individual may be appointed to fill the vacancy in accordance with Section 6 below.

Section 3. Board

The Board of Directors shall consist of the above-mentioned Officers. It shall be the duty of the elected Officers to appoint qualified people for other positions as necessary for the operation of the League. The duties of the Officers shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

President

1. Shall preside at all meetings of the League
2. Shall serve as representative for USA Softball
3. Shall set agenda and schedules for the season
4. Shall maintain a running history of the League
5. Shall oversee all projects and task set forth by the each board member
6. Shall be responsible for arranging for team and League insurance
7. Shall have authority to take immediate disciplinary action against any Coach, Manager, or League member for any serious violations of these by-laws as determined by the President.

Vice President

1. Shall act as an aide to the President
2. Shall conduct opening and closing ceremonies
3. Shall review local rules
5. Shall create and maintain a budget for related expenses
6. Shall be in charge of election of Officers for the new Board
7. Absent a fundraiser position, shall be responsible for fundraising and sponsors

Secretary

1. Shall maintain records of business transacted at each meeting and provide a copy of the minutes to the Board members at the next regularly-scheduled meeting
2. Shall maintain a running history of the League
4. Shall provide notice of board meetings
5. Shall arrange location for board meetings
6. Shall be the point of contact with the City for any field usage or Concerns

Treasurer

1. Shall receive and distribute all funds of the League as authorized by the Board
2. Shall keep financial records
3. Shall be responsible for prompt payment of League insurance bills
4. Shall maintain a running history of the League's financial records
5. Shall create and maintain a budget for all League expenses

Coach Administrator

1. Shall issue team rosters and provide all team/player changes to managers
2. Shall be responsible for activities concerning the registration process
3. Shall maintain a running history of Player Agent activities for the League
4. Shall create and maintain a budget for related expenses
5. Keep league standings for their respective divisions
6. Shall solicit All Star nominations from all managers, regardless of which division the player participates in.

Umpire-In-Chief

1. Shall schedule all Umpires
2. Shall maintain schedules for all make-up and rescheduled games
3. Shall be primary contact for all Umpires and Scorekeepers
4. Shall notify board of league rule changes

Equipment Manager

1. Shall purchase necessary equipment
 2. Shall keep an inventory of each team's equipment
 3. Shall disburse and collect equipment from team Managers
 4. Shall create and maintain a budget for related expenses
 5. Shall keep inventory of league equipment
 6. Responsible for first aid kits located in equipment bags and in snack bar area.
 7. Maintain supplies.
 8. Maintain equipment contracts with coaches

Field and maintenance Manager

1. Shall obtain required use permits for fields utilized by the League
3. Shall create a budget and maintain the finances and related records for field maintenance
4. Shall oversee the condition and preparation of the fields
5. Shall develop a plan for field improvement and maintenance
6. Shall organize a field day for improvements if required
7. Shall coordinate fields for League playoffs and League tournaments
8. Report and/or repair any safety hazards on fields

Director of Equipment and Fields

1. Assist Equipment Manager and Field Manager with all aspects of their responsibilities
2. Responsible for scheduling/coordinating games
3. Liaison with City in securing fields, lights, etc.
4. Responsible for maintaining batting cage at Shiells Park
5. Responsible for securing bids for uniforms

Snack Bar Coordinator

1. Shall be responsible for the Snack Bar, its operation and staffing
2. Shall purchase supplies and keep inventory
3. Shall maintain the Snack Bar equipment
4. Shall create a budget, maintain the finances and financial records
6. Shall report the financial status to the Board during regular monthly meetings
7. Turn in weekly deposits to Treasure with signature of transfers
8. Coordinate dumpster delivery and pickup

Fundraising Director

1. Shall be responsible for all fundraising activity including, but not limited to, any and all raffle-related activities.
2. Shall create and maintain a budget for related expenses
3. Maintain fireworks booth permits & activities

Social Media and Webmaster

1. Shall be responsible for all publicity-related activities including, but not limited to, newsletters, placement of information in local newspapers, and school letters.
2. Shall maintain Social media Account under Fillmoregirlssoftballofficial.
3. Shall maintain website account under team sideline that includes Registration, promotion of all events and programs that are being offered by FGS.
4. Shall add all meetings, events and details to the website calendar.
5. Shall create and maintain a budget for related expenses
6. Shall be responsible for ensuring that all sponsorship fees are paid and ensuring sponsors are provided with some form of appreciation for their support.

Board members at large

1. Shall attend all Board meeting
2. Shall plan to assist with any projects set forth and agreed on as a board for the current season
3. Shall be the point of contact for one week at the snack bar and fields.

Section 4. Election of Officers

In August, a public notice will be sent out via local media sources seeking Board Members for the new term. Nominations and voting will be held at the September Board Meeting, be elected by ballot vote or Verbal in person vote by previous board members depending on the amount of interest and number of persons present to vote. Ballots will be tallied and results will be announced at the September meeting.

Section 5. Disciplinary Action

1. All complaints alleging violation of League rules, regulations or codes or any other complaints shall be directed in writing, solely to the Board. The complaint must be signed and include any contact information in order to be considered by the Board. The Board shall consider the matter in closed session in order to determine whether the matter warrants further investigation or action.
2. Unless action was taken by the President as provided in Article IV Section 3 of these by-laws, disciplinary action against a Board Officer, Coach, Manager, or League member will only be considered if a written and/or verbal request is presented to the Board at least two weeks prior to a scheduled Board meeting. Written notice of impending action, or any action taken by the President, must be given to the charged individual at least one week prior to the Board meeting at which time the action will be discussed. The charged individual will be allowed to speak on his/her behalf at the Board meeting. Final discipline or removal from a position requires a two-thirds vote of the attending Board members.
3. A Board position will be considered vacant if Board Member has two consecutive absentees from attending a Board meeting without written notification and will be required to pay full registration of child participating in FGS.

Section 6. Vacancies

Vacancies occurring in elected offices before the expiration of that term shall be appointed by the President with the approval of a two-thirds vote of the remaining Board. The appointed individual will serve the remaining portion of the two year term.

Article V: Meetings Section 1. Annual Meeting

An Annual Meeting will be held for the purpose of conducting the election of Officers at the September Board Meeting. If any positions are not filled by election, the President may distribute the position responsibilities in accordance with Article IV, Section 2 and subsequently be treated as a vacant position as defined in Article IV, Section 6.

Section 2. Notice of Meeting

At least seven (7) days in advance of each Board meeting, notice of the meeting shall be given to the members in such a form as authorized by the Board.

Section 3. Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called by the Board or the President at their discretion. Upon written request of at least two thirds of League members, the President shall call a special meeting to consider a specific request.

Section 4. Transaction of Business

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held as required for the transaction of business after all Board members have been notified of the time and place. A majority of Board members, one plus half of the current number of Board members, must be present at a meeting to constitute a quorum for the purpose of transacting business. Any member may submit two absentee Proxy Votes per year in writing. The absentee proxy will only apply to items that will be subject to a vote as determined at the previous Board meeting.

Article VI: Finances

Section 1. Registration and Sponsor Fees

Registration and sponsor fees will be determined by the Board of Directors in a meeting before each season's sign-ups. The fees shall be initiated to defray the operating expenses of the League. Deferred payments may be approved by the Board in the event of hardship situations.

Section 2. Equality

The Board of Directors shall decide all matters pertaining to the finances. No individual team shall have an advantage over any other team in regard to expenditures.

Section 3. Authorization

The Treasurer and one other authorized board member shall sign checks. In the Treasurer's absence, the President or other board members who are specifically designated by the Board may sign checks for authorized expenditures. All payments will be pre-approved by the President prior to payment. No one person can approve payment and sign a check for any given disbursement..

Section 4. Federal and State Reporting Requirements

The Treasurer shall be responsible for annually filing all required Federal (IRS) and State Information returns. These returns are public information. All records of transactions are property of Fillmore Girls Softball League.

Section 5. Audit

The Treasurer's books shall be audited as often as the board deems it necessary if the Board so desires. The auditor shall be a third-party designee of the Board. The extent of the audit is at the discretion of the Board and the results will be reported to the Board.

Section 6. Financial Aid (Hardship)

Relief from registration fees can be requested via a written request presented to the Board for review. Hardship letters must be received prior to the last day of general registration sign-ups to be considered. Max of 10 total Scholarships at 2 per division.

Registration fees will be waived to all board members' children who fulfill their duties. Which include not missing more than 4 monthly and weekly meetings Board Meetings. Board Members not attending will be required to pay the registration signup fee.

Article VII: Committees

Committees shall be appointed by the President and/or Board as required to conduct business of the League.

Article VIII: Amendments

These by-laws shall be adopted or amended by a majority vote of the Board of Directors of the League at any regular or special meeting held prior to the start of registration. No changes to the by-laws shall be allowed between the end of registration not to pass January 31 and the completion of League participation in any All Star tournaments. A complete history of the amendments to the by-laws shall be recorded in the files of the League and be maintained by the President.

Article IX: Local Rules and Policies Section 1. Rules and Regulations

All rules and regulations will be based on ASA and local rules, with local rules superseding ASA.

Section 2. Local Age Divisions

1. T-Ball Division will consist of boys & girls between the ages of 4 and 6 years as of April 30th.
2. 6U Division will consist of girls between the ages of 4 ½ and 6 years as of August 31st..
3. 8 and Under Division will consist of girls between the ages of 7 and 8. There will be assessments for this division. Age of August 31st of the current season is to be used for the season.
4. 10 and Under Division will consist of girls between the ages of 9 and 10. Each girl is expected to participate in assessments as specified during registration. Age as of August 31st of the current season is to be used for season.
5. 12 and Under Division will consist of girls between the ages of 11 and 12. . Each girl is expected to participate in assessments as specified during registration. Age of August 31st of the current season is to be used for the season.
6. 14 and Under Division will consist of girls between the ages of 13 and 14. Each girl is expected to participate in assessments as specified during registration. Age of August 31st of the current season is to be used for the season.
7. Girls may play up one Division with the approval of the Board prior to assessments. Any girl who chooses to play up one division shall be required to stay in that division for the purpose of playing on an All Star team, unless she is granted permission from the board to play on the All Star team in the lower division.
9. Girls may play down one Division with the assessment and approval of the Board. Individual cases will be brought to the Board through the Coach Administrator or guardian of the child. They do not qualify to play in All-Stars for that season.

Section 3. Local Rules – All Divisions

1. Only the Umpire-In-Chief, Commissioner of Fields, or President has the authority to cancel a game prior to game time due to field and/or weather conditions. Only games cancelled because of field and/or weather conditions shall be rescheduled. Regularly scheduled games shall not be rescheduled unless both teams are unable to field a team for good cause with seven (7) days' notification to the President; both teams must agree to reschedule. The Managers are not to coordinate rescheduled games amongst themselves. Cancelled games will only be rescheduled if they will have an impact on determining the division winner.
2. Forfeit time is game time plus ten (10) minutes.
3. Players must wear the uniform as furnished by the League. The only position players exempt from wearing hats shall be pitchers and catchers. Shirts must be tucked in at all times while on the playing field. If not, this could be cause for the team to be charged with a delay-of-game penalty, as set by ASA standards.
4. Managers cannot recruit for their vacancies; they must take girls from the waiting list.
5. Girls will not be permitted to practice or play in the League until a signed registration form and medical release form are submitted to the Coach administrator, and Managers have a copy. The Coach administrator will be responsible to monitor if forms are collected.

6. Practices shall not start prior to the date determined by the Board. The Board must approve any exceptions.
7. Managers must contact the Player Agent and Division Coordinator within twenty-four (24) hours with the name of any girl who has dropped from a team.
8. After each game or practice, each team is responsible to make sure the fields and spectator areas are clean and not littered with debris.
9. The League will not be responsible for any personal equipment and/or items of the players, nor assume any liability for players using personal equipment. Personal equipment is required to meet the specifications and safety standards set by ASA. Any use of illegal equipment will result in an automatic out and will be removed by the umpire for the remainder of the game. Illegal equipment will be returned to player after the game has ended.
10. Each Manager must always have each player's medical release with her/him at every function, practice, and game, in case of injury. Umpires will check before games. First offense will be a warning. Second offense will result in a forfeit of the game.
11. At NO time is alcohol or tobacco allowed on the premises where League games are being held. Managers and Coaches will be responsible for ensuring that spectators do not violate this policy.
12. Rain: If a game is to be called because of rain or drizzle, there must be a waiting period of a minimum of 15 minutes for clear weather. After 15 minutes, it is left to the umpire's discretion to call the game. Both teams must show up ready to play unless previously notified by the Player Agent, Vice-President or President. Refer to ASA rules in handbook.
13. Complete game: A game will be considered complete upon completion of 4 innings or 3 ½ if the home team is ahead, or no new inning will begin after 1 hour, 30 minutes and will be considered a complete game. No game shall last more than 7 innings. In the event of a tie, the game shall continue under the international tie-breaker rule for one inning, and if the game remains a tie, then the game is officially a tie.
14. Rescheduling of games: Rescheduling a game is allowable as long as the Player Agent is notified at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance. Failure to do this will result in the forfeiture of the game. Refer to ASA rules in handbook for unfinished inning.
15. Line-Ups: Line-ups and pitching out from the previous regularly scheduled game and substitution sheets must be filled out and handed to the Manager and official scorekeeper of the opposing team prior to the scheduled game time. All players must be listed on the line-up sheet. Any girl not playing in the game must be noted.
16. Official Scorekeeper: The Home Team must provide an official scorekeeper that will keep the official score. The official scorekeeper must sit within a reasonable distance between the umpire and the home team. If a discrepancy occurs between the visitor's scorebook and the official scorebook during the game, the game should be stopped and the problem resolved at that time... Final results of games will be turned into snack bar by the home team after every game.
17. Location of players and equipment: Managers and Coaches must keep their players in their designated areas. All equipment must be kept behind the backstop or in the dugout. No parents or siblings may enter the dugout.

Section 4. Protest – All Divisions

The protest of a game requires payment of a \$25.00 fee at the time the protest is filed. If the protest is upheld, the fee will be returned to the payee. If not, the fee will go to the League. To protest a game, a written description of the specific infraction of the rule must be delivered to the Umpire-In-Chief within forty-eight (48) hours of the end of the protested game. The Umpire-In-Chief will review the protest and evaluate the issue. The final decision made by the Umpire-In-Chief and the President is final and cannot be appealed or protested.

Section 5. Playing Rules – All Divisions

1. Each girl present at a game shall play a minimum of two (2) innings in the field. This requirement must be met by the end of the fourth (4th) inning. For disciplinary purposes, the manager may bench a player. Parent and board must be notified in advance.

2. All players will bat throughout the game with field substitutions not affecting the batting order.
3. Should a player need to leave the game for any reason, the offensive team shall not be penalized with an *out* when the player's spot in the batting order is reached. All batters below the player who left shall be moved up one spot in the batting order.
4. Should a player arrive after the start of a legal game, the player shall be placed at the bottom of the batting order. If the player arrives prior to the start of the second 2nd) inning, the minimum play requirements must still be met. If the player is not able to meet the minimum play requirements because of lack of remaining innings, the team will not be penalized.
5. Minimum number of players: A team with only 8 players will play the game.
 6. Failure to field a team of 8 players: A forfeit will be declared in favor of the non-offending team based upon the umpire's official time if a team of 8 players fails to appear upon the field within 10 minutes after the scheduled starting time.
7. Borrowed players: If a team cannot field a team of 9 players, at scheduled game time they may borrow from the division below. A team may never have more borrowed players than roster players during a game. The borrowed players may not pitch in a game. If a roster player arrives late, he/she will be inserted at the bottom of the batting order. Borrowed players must then be removed from the game if the batting lineup exceeds 9 players at no penalty. A team may also add a player should the team fall below the 8-player minimum at any time during the game.
8. Round Robin Batting: All divisions will bat round robin. If a player arrives late to the game he/she will be added to the bottom of the batting order. If a player is injured, he/she may be removed from the line-up with no penalty to the game. If the injury is minor but the player is able to take his/her turn at bat or return defensively, he/she can continue in the game in his/her same batting position. If he/she is unable to bat he/she must be removed from the line-up for the remainder of the game with no penalty to the team.
9. Player leaves during the game: If a player becomes sick or has to leave the game for any other reason, he/she will be removed from the line-up with no penalty to the team for the remainder of the game.
10. Except for the pitcher position, there will be free substitution in the field at any time. The pitcher can be removed and re-enter in the pitching position two (2) times only.
11. All playing rules shall apply to both the regular season and year-end tournament play without modifications.
12. Pitching:
 - a) A pitcher for the divisions of 8 and under and 10 and under may not pitch more than 3 innings per game. If a pitcher has pitched her 3rd) innings or 9 outs she must be removed from the mound for 2 innings or 6 outs before she may be allowed to return to the mound. Once a pitcher has thrown just 1 pitch in her 1/3rd) inning it will be recorded as an inning pitched. The pitcher may play another position when not pitching. 12 and under 24 outs and 14 and under 27 outs divisions may not pitch more than outs per week during the regular season. For the purpose of determining this requirement, the week begins on Saturday and ends on Friday.
 - b) Championship, Playoff and Tiebreaker games will be exempt.
 - c) If a pitcher has only one or two outs of eligibility left, and a double or triple play caused him/her to exceed his/her specified outs eligibility, there will be no penalty. All outs pitched beyond the specified out limit will be credited against that pitcher's eligibility for the next game that he/she is eligible as a pitcher.
 - d) Any pitch made to a batter, by a pitcher, after he/she has pitched his/her specified out, shall be considered a violation of the specified out rule.
 - e) Each team's score book must show the exact number of outs pitched by all of that teams pitchers up-to-date.
 - f) If a player pitches more than the maximum number of outs in any given week as stated above, the team shall forfeit the game. To obtain the forfeit, an official protest must be made in accordance with the protest procedures.

- g) In the event of a game being called prior to completions, all pitching outs from that game will be carried over to the rescheduled game. For the game following the incomplete game, pitching outs will be determined by the last complete game. For the purposes of the re-scheduled game, the pitching outs from the game prior to the re-scheduled game along with the outs from the incomplete game will apply.

Section 6. Local Playing Rules – 6U

1. Field dimensions: These divisions will play with a 60-foot diamond.
 - a) Hash marks will be added as a “run pass line” (if you pass line by the time pitcher has the ball, continue to next base).
2. Standings and score keeping:
 - a) No score or standings will be kept, only the number of batters during the inning.
 - b) Both teams will keep track of the number of batters and announce when the last batter of the inning comes up to bat.
3. Inning length:
 - a) Entire season, mandatory defensive third out rule or full batting line up have batted; whichever occurs first will be in effect with a 1:00 minute drop-dead maximum game time.
4. Coaches in the field of play:
 - a) The defensive team is allowed two coaches positioned in the outfield (1 in left, 1 in right), they must attempt to stay out of play of the ball and may not touch the ball at any time. If the defensive coach on the playing field touches a ball, the ball is dead and all the runners advance two bases from the base occupied before the ball was hit.
 - b) The offensive team is allowed standard base coaches and a hitting coach to help the batter at the plate. If an offensive coach intentionally touches a ball, the ball is dead, the batter is not out and the runners return to the base they occupied before the ball was hit.
 - c) The hitting coach may elect to throw no more than three pitches to the batter before going to the use of the tee. Pitching is encouraged for the first half of the season. Coach pitching will be mandatory second half of season with a maximum of three pitches or use of tee after the three pitches. Coaches must pitch in front of pitching circle or 25 feet from home plate.
5. Batting and base running:
 - a) The batter may not strike out, foul out or walk. The batter will remain at bat until the ball is hit into fair territory. The ball must cross the infield arch chalk line in front of home plate or it will be considered foul.
 - b) Base runners may advance only one base per infield hit, regardless of the number of overthrows made.
 - c) Once balls hit into the outfield off of the coach pitch the runners may continue to advance until the ball is returned to the pitcher in the pitcher’s circle. At that time, play will end and the runners less than halfway between bases must return to the base they just came from if it is not occupied. If the runner is more than halfway, s/he may advance to the next base if it is unoccupied. If both bases are occupied the runner is out. If the ball is hit off the tee players are not allowed to advance more than one base.
6. Fielders: Outfielders are to be positioned at least 5-feet behind the baselines and not interfering with the player running the bases.
7. Umpires: Both teams shall agree to a coach or parent umpire before the game. Anyone acting as the umpire shall demonstrate impartiality towards both teams when making official calls and decisions during the course of the game. Parents that umpire are required to have a background check before volunteering that they will pay for out of their own

pocket. Unless the board rules different. If volunteer is a minor between the ages 16-17, no background check is required and will have to have experience and knowledge playing softball.

Section 7. Local Playing Rules – 8 and Under Division

1. Base lines: Base lines are 60 feet.
2. Inning length: Each inning will consist of three outs or a maximum of four runs per inning. After the umpire calls “last inning” the runs may be unlimited.
3. Coaches in the field of play: One defensive coach will be allowed in the outfield when their team is on defense. They must attempt to stay out of the play of the ball and may not touch the ball. If intentionally touched by a defensive coach, the ball is dead, the batter is out and all runners return to the base they occupied before the ball was hit. The 2nd half of the regular season no coaches will be allowed on field of play.
4. Fourth outfielder: Each will field 10 players with the 10th player being a fourth outfielder. All outfielders must be positioned on the outfield grass at the time of the pitch.

Base running:

- a) Stealing will be allowed, permitted when the ball is released from pitcher's hand. A runner can only steal one base per pitch.
 - b) A runner cannot steal home. “Cold Plate”
 - c) Sliding is permitted if done in a sportsmanlike manner.
 - d) Bunting: Bunting is allowed for a girl pitched ball. Bunting is not allowed for a coach pitched ball.
5. Play ends: A play ends when the defensive team throws the ball to the pitcher. Play will also end if the ball crosses the vertical plate extending from the 8-foot pitcher circle. The umpire will call time out. A base runner occupying a base may not advance further. A base runner more than halfway advance to the next base if unoccupied. If both bases are occupied the runner is out. Play will continue if the pitcher attempts to throw out an advancing girl.
6. Pitching (First half of season):
- a) Pitching distance is 30 feet.
 - b) Balls and strikes will be called; however, there are no walks, coaches will come in and pitch to finish batters count.
 - c) The strike zone is that area over home plate, which is between the top of the batter's shoulders and the bottom of her knees, when the batter assumes her natural batting stance.
 - d) A batter hit by a pitched ball by a defensive pitcher will be awarded first base. A batter hit by a ball pitched by her coach will remain at bat and the pitch will be considered a ball.
 - e) The pitcher shall pitch until the batter has hit safely, been put out, or until she has reached the count of ball four. At that time her coach or other team representative shall pitch 2 additional maximum pitches depending on the pitch count.
 - f) The coach must stand on the rubber when pitching to a batter.
7. Pitching (Second half of season, no “coach pitching”)
- a) Pitching distance is 30 feet. Use of a 10” ball with soft core.
 - b) Balls and strikes will be called, walks will be allowed.

c) The strike zone is that area over home plate, which is between the top of the batter's shoulders and the bottom of her knees, when the batter assumes her natural batting stance.

d) A batter hit by a pitched ball will be awarded first base.

8. Umpires: Any abuse or intimidation of umpires by managers, coaches or parents will result in the ejection of the offending team's manager and his/her suspension of the next scheduled game.

Section 8. Local Playing Rules – 10, 12 & 14 and Under Divisions

1. Base lines: Base lines are 60 feet.

2. Inning length: Each inning will consist of three outs or maximum of five (10u) and six runs per inning (12u and 14u). After the umpire calls "last inning" the runs may be unlimited.

3. Each team will field 9 players. All outfielders must be positioned on the outfield grass at the time of the pitch.

4. Base Running:

a. For the 10, 12 and 14 and under divisions the runner may attempt to steal at the release of the pitch with the liability to be put out.

b. A runner can steal home. "Hot Plate"

c. Sliding is permitted if done in a sportsmanlike manner.

d. Drop third strike rule applies to 10, 12, and 14 & under divisions. Infield fly rule in affect.

5. Pitching:

a. Pitching distance is 35 feet for 10 & under division, using an 11" ball with soft core.

b. Pitching distance is 40 feet for 12, and 43 feet for 14 & under divisions, using a 12" ball.

6. Umpires: Any abuse or intimidation of umpires by managers, coaches or parents will result in the ejection of the offending team's manager and his/her suspension of the next scheduled game.

Article X: League Draft Procedures

1. All players must participate in the appropriate divisional assessments tryouts for eligibility in the AA draft unless a waiver has been submitted and approved by the Board. The draft will be conducted using an open draft format.

2. Players wishing to move up in an age division must try out in that age division and be approved by the board of directors, if not selected for a team then must stay in the correct age division.

3. Managers will be notified before the scheduled tryouts and draft regarding experienced pitchers and catchers.

4. Exceptions to the draft eligibility will be by Board approval only. Trades will be allowed at the end of the draft with board approval only.

5. Managers' daughters are protected and shall be drafted by the fourth 4th & 5th round.

6. Player selection process: Only the head coach will be allowed at the draft.

7. Draft order will be determined by drawing numbers. Seating will be in draft sequence.

8. Pitchers, catchers, and previous all-star team members will be evenly distributed between all teams, and will be presented before the draft.

9. For the divisions of 8 and under through 14 and under the Assistant Coaches child will be guaranteed on any team but may be traded if selected by another manager only if everyone involved in the draft agree to the terms of a trade.

10. Order of selection will be as follows:

Draw number 1- amount of teams, Follow snake draft process as follows in rule 7.

Article XI: Managers, Coaches, Scorekeepers, and Umpires

1. Application process: Completion of a Manager or Coach Application form does not guarantee that the applicant will be assigned a team. All Managers and Coaches positions are filled as vacancies occur and require Board approval. All Managers and Coaches must attend the Manager and Coaches' meeting scheduled by the Coach Administrator prior to February 1st. Failure by either a Coach or Manager to attend this MANDATORY meeting can be grounds for rescission of Board approval of his/her position, unless notification is given and satisfactory just cause is demonstrated to the Player Agent Representative prior to the meeting.
2. Managers and Coaches: The Managers and Coaches of each team must be at least eighteen (18) years of age. The Manager must have knowledge of softball. The Manager has complete responsibility for her/his team. Coaches must have knowledge and ability in softball. At least one member of each team's staff, a Manager, Coach, or Team Parent, must be a woman. Team functions will not be permitted unless an adult woman is in attendance. This requirement also applies to all practices. Must have background check and volunteer form filled out along with completion of coaches clinic hosted by Fillmore Girls Softball.
3. Selection: The Board will review all Managers and Coaches for necessary qualifications, abilities, and knowledge. A Manager or Coach may be managing/coaching personnel for one additional team in a different Division only with a lack of volunteers and Board approval.
4. Scorekeepers: Each team will provide one (1) Scorekeeper for its games. The home team's Scorekeeper will act as the official Scorekeeper.
5. Umpires: All Divisions except 6U will have ASA-certified Umpires or Board approved Officials who are under the supervision of the Umpire-In-Chief.
6. Vacancies: When vacancies occur for Managers or Coaches, nominations shall be made to the President of the League who will present the applications to the Board for selection and approval.

Article XII: Managers and Coaches – Rules and Guidelines

1. Concussion Protocol: Youth Sports and Concussions (Assembly Bill 2007)

Since 2012, per Assembly Bill 25, all schools with sports programs have been required to immediately remove an athlete from an athletic activity for the remainder of the day if the athlete is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury, and prohibits the athlete from returning to the athletic activity until the athlete is evaluated by a licensed health care provider, trained in the management of concussions, and acting within the scope of his or her practice, and the athlete receives written clearance from the licensed health care provider to return to the athletic activity. This law also requires, on a yearly basis, a concussion and head injury information sheet to be signed and returned by the athlete and athlete's parent or guardian before the athlete's re-initiating practice or competition.

A new law went into effect on January 1, 2017. Assembly Bill 2007 now applies these same regulations to athletes participating in youth sports organizations. Softball is one of the 27 youth sports now required to:

- Remove an athlete who may have a concussion during a practice or game to be removed from the activity for the remainder of the day.

- Any athlete removed for this reason must receive a written clearance note from a medical doctor trained in the management of concussion before returning to practice, and after completion of the Return to Learn and Return to Play Protocols.

- Before an athlete can start the season and begin practice in a sport, a concussion information sheet must be signed and returned to the league by the parent/guardian.

- Provide all coaches and administrators with training on concussions, and document completion and understanding of this training.

However, AB 2007 has not yet provided specific educational material, tools, information sheets or protocols for

youth sports organizations. Until such material is provided, USA Softball of Southern California used the material currently available by the California Interscholastic Federation to all schools as part of AB 25, which fulfills all areas of this new law, to put together the information contained in the following pages dealing with concussions.

In addition to the information provided as stated above, please visit the links below for a free information available on concussions.

<http://www.cdc.gov/concussion/HeadsUp/Training/index.html>

<http://www.cdc.gov/headsup/youthsports/parents.html>

<http://www.cdc.gov/headsup/youthsports/athletes.html> <http://nfhslearn.com/courses/61064/concussion-in-sports>

1. The Board of Directors shall appoint managers and Coaches annually. FGS Board will pay for three (3) background checks per team which shall include the Manager, Assistant Coach, and Team Mom. Additional coaches, etc. will be responsible to pay for their own background checks.
2. No person will be appointed as a Manager or Coach who has been convicted of a felony against a child or violent crime.
3. Managers and Coaches shall be appointed on the basis of leadership, adaptability, and knowledge of the rules of play, their character, commitment, and cooperative nature.
4. Conduct of Managers and Coaches will be strictly enforced according to Fillmore Girls Softball by-laws and coaching roster and names of such candidates shall be submitted.
5. Managers and Coaches are responsible for the actions of their team members on the field of play. Managers and Coaches are entrusted with furthering the physical, mental and emotional development of each player on their respective teams as per Fillmore Girls Softball.
6. Managers and Coaches shall conduct all phases of training and play in accordance with the rules, regulations and policies of Fillmore Girls Softball. Managers and Coaches shall further commit themselves to uphold all such rules, regulations and policies.
7. Managers and Coaches shall exercise leadership on the field of play and demonstrate respect for umpires and other officials. Adherence to the principles of fairness, courtesy and good sportsmanship as set forth.
8. Managers and Coaches shall pay particular attention to safety rules. Permit only safe and proper use of equipment and employ methods of play designed to avoid injury to any person.

9. COACHING ETHICS

- a) Will not criticize players in front of spectators, but reserve constructive criticism for private or in the presence of the team
- b) Will accept decisions of official on the field as being fair and called to the best ability of the officials
- c) Will not criticize the officials, the opposing team, the coaches, or fans by word of mouth or gesture.
- d) Will emphasize that good athletes are good students, and are both physically and mentally alert.
- e) Will strive to make every Fillmore Girls Softball/T-Ball activity serve as a training ground for life and a basis for good mental and physical health.
- f) Will emphasize that winning a game is the result of teamwork.
- g) Will not use abusive or profane language before anyone connected with the game.
- h) Will not pile it on as the phase is used when a team gets a commanding lead and desires to raise the score as high as it can be.
- i) Will not be on the playing or practice field under the influence of alcohol or drugs.

j) Use of tobacco on the practice or playing field is prohibited this includes smokeless.

k) Will set an example in personal conduct at all times.

Article XIII: Most Inspirational Player and All-Star Teams Section

1. Most Inspirational Player (MIP)

1. One MIP will be selected from each team in all Divisions.

2. The MIP will be selected for her enthusiasm, sportsmanship, attitude, and team play as demonstrated throughout the season; selection will not be based on skills and ability.

3. Coaches make the selection of the player.

4. The Manager will notify the player and give them a recognition.

By-laws have been reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors of the current 2025 spring season.

President Ivana Negrete

Vice President Amanda Dezavala

Treasure Juan Pablo Herrera

Secretary Joanna Rangel

Coach Administrator Rosa Gonzalez

Field and Maintenance Manager Jose Juarez

Snack bar coordinator Evelyn Martinez